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1. Name of Property

Historic name: Fortville Methodist Episcopal Church

Other names/site number: Fortville First United Methodist Church. Gateway Community Church of Fortville
Name of related multiple property listing:

_N/A

(Enter "N/A" if property is not part of a multiple property listing

2. Location

Street & number: 125 East Staat Street
City or town: Fortville __ State: IN County: Hancock
Not For Publication: Vicinity:

3. State/Federal Agency Certification
As the designated authority under the National Historic Preservation Act, as amended,

I hereby certify that this _X nomination  request for determination of eligibility meets
the documentation standards for registering properties in the National Register of Historic
Places and meets the procedural and professional requirements set forth in 36 CFR Part 60.

In my opinion, the property X meets  does not meet the National Register Criteria. |
recommend that this property be considered significant at the following
level(s) of significance:

___hnational ___statewide X local
Applicable National Register Criteria:

A __ B X _C D

Signature of certifying official/Title: Date
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Name of Property

Hancock County, IN

County and State

4. National Park Service Certification

I hereby certify that this property is:

__entered in the National Register

__determined eligible for the National Register
__determined not eligible for the National Register
__removed from the National Register

__other (explain:)

Signature of the Keeper

Date of Action

5. Classification
Ownership of Property

(Check as many boxes as apply.)
Private: %

Public — Local

Public — State

Public — Federal

Category of Property
(Check only one box.)

Building(s) X

District

Site

Structure

Object
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Number of Resources within Property
(Do not include previously listed resources in the count)

Contributing Noncontributing
1 0 buildings
0 0 sites
0 0 structures
0 0 objects
1 0 Total
Number of contributing resources previously listed in the National Register 0

6. Function or Use

Historic Functions

(Enter categories from instructions.)
RELIGION: religious facility

Current Functions
(Enter categories from instructions.)
RELIGION: religious facility
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7. Description

Architectural Classification
(Enter categories from instructions.)
LATE 19™ AND EARLY 20™ CENTURY REVIVALS/Late Gothic Revival

Materials: (enter categories from instructions.)

foundation: STONE: Limestone
walls: BRICK

roof: CONCRETE

other: STONE: Limestone

Narrative Description

(Describe the historic and current physical appearance and condition of the property. Describe
contributing and noncontributing resources if applicable. Begin with a summary paragraph that
briefly describes the general characteristics of the property, such as its location, type, style,
method of construction, setting, size, and significant features. Indicate whether the property has
historic integrity.)

Summary Paragraph

Fortville Methodist Episcopal Church, built in 1901 in Fortville, Hancock County, Indiana, is an
outstanding example of Gothic Revival church architecture that retains a significant amount of
historic integrity. Located on the northwest side of East Staat Street between North Main and
School Streets in a well-established residential neighborhood, the cross-gabled structure features
two towers of similar design situated in the ells formed by the intersecting gables. In 1962, a
two-story addition was built off the northwest fagade. The church exhibits distinguishing
characteristics of the Gothic Revival style including pointed-arch windows, brick construction,
window tracery, pointed-arch doorways, buttresses, and towers with pinnacles. Limestone is
used in places as additional architectural accent.
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Narrative Description

Fortville Methodist Episcopal Church, built in 1901,! is an outstanding example of Gothic
Revival church architecture that retains a significant amount of historic integrity. Constructed of
red brick with limestone accents, the church is located approximately half a block northeast of
Fortville’s historic and current commercial corridor. It occupies the east corner of the block
bounded by East Staat Street, Veterans Court (previously School Street), East Church Street, and
Main Street. At the time the church was constructed, the neighborhood was well-established as
residential with small narrow lots. A house had previously existed on the church site and an older
structure used as the Fortville Methodist Episcopal Church was just to the northwest on the same
block. Presently, East Staat Street is a relatively quiet residential street. Immediately next to the
church on all sides is a strip of grass along with the occasional plantings of flowers and shrubs.
When leafed out, two tall trees virtually obscure the southeast facade. Along the grass is a
sidewalk on the southwest, southeast, northeast sides, followed by parking lots on the southwest,
northwest, and northeast sides. Across Veterans Court to the northeast is Landmark Park where
the public school once stood,? and directly across Staats Street is a mortuary with a large parking
lot to the northeast.

Exterior

Fortville Methodist Episcopal Church is a cross-gabled structure with bell tower in the east ell,
smaller tower in the west ell, and two-story addition, built in 1962, off the northwest facade.
The main gable section housing the sanctuary is oriented southeast to northwest on the lot with
the cross gable oriented southwest to northeast and positioned toward the northwestern end of the
main section. The original building and the addition are constructed of red brick in a running
bond pattern. Rusticated limestone units form a tall foundation for the original building with the
top row projecting slightly and acting as a water table. Simple concrete masonry units support
the addition with only one row being visible above ground. Other overall details include
limestone accents and a brownish-gray interlocking, concrete tile roof on the original structure
that mimics the look of slate. Copper panels cover the tower roofs and copper caps the short
tower pinnacles. The building addition has a flat rubber roof.* Window styles on the building
include pointed-arch; one-over one, double-hung constructed of wood; aluminum-framed
awning; and fixed. The windows of the original church structure have limestone sills and most
contain stained or leaded glass. Some windows also have limestone lintels. The stepped-up
profile, wood cornice is painted white.

! “Fortville’s New Church,” Indianapolis News, 24 March 1902, 5.

2 Sanborn Fire Insurance Map from Fortville, Hancock County, Indiana (Sanborn Map Company, 1895), 1,
https://www.loc.gov/item/sanborn02335_001/ (accessed 19 September 2022).

3 Dr. Leon L. Nicholsen, ed., “History of the Fortville First United Methodist Church,” prepared for History
Sunday, 4 May 1980; Addendum by Maurice Shoults, 12 September 1987; 6.

4 Alex Yovanovich, Gateway Community Church Trustee, e-mail to Jill Downs, 26 September 2022, Fort
Wayne, Indiana.
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The front gable of the church (photo 1), facing southeast toward East Staat Street, contains a
pointed-arch, louvered opening with rusticated limestone sill at attic level. Three courses of brick
headers outline the arch. Below this is a centered, rectangular, slightly projecting bay. Spanning
the width of the bay across the top are three projecting courses of stretcher bricks, and square
brick piers capped with limestone extend from the bay’s corners to above the roofline. Centered
in the bay is a large, pointed-arch, stained-glass window accented with wood tracery painted
white. [lluminating the balcony and narthex areas of the church, the window is further accented
by four courses of brick headers outlining the arch and by a rusticated limestone sill. On either
side of the window, at about midway, a brick soldier course of alternating flush and recessed
units sandwiched between two stretcher courses spans the width of the fagade. Centered at the
basement level are three, one-over one, double-hung windows.

The northeast side of the original structure contains three bays (photos 1 and 2). In the first bay,
toward the east end, a through-the-cornice gabled dormer contains a pointed-arch, double-hung,
stained-glass window with rusticated limestone sill. It is embellished with modest tracery and its
arch is outlined by two courses of brick headers. Visually separating the first and second stories,
a brick soldier course of alternating flush and recessed units sandwiched between two stretcher
courses spans the width of the bay. Centered in the bay at the first story level, and in line with the
gable window, is a window of similar design except it is slightly taller and its arch is outlined by
three courses of brick headers. Below this window at basement level is a small, one-over-one,
double-hung window.

The second bay contains a square bell tower with brick buttresses, situated within the ell formed
by the cross gables, that extends approximately one story beyond the height of the main church
structure. The tower is topped with a simple copper cross and its corners are detailed with short,
copper-covered pinnacles. The cornice is accented by three projecting courses of stretcher bricks.
At the uppermost level on the southeast, northeast and northwest sides is a large, pointed-arch,
double lancet, louvered opening with rusticated limestone sill. Three courses of header bricks
outline the arch. The second story level on the southeast and northeast sides contains a stained-
glass, double-hung window with rusticated limestone sills and headers. The lower light of the
northeast window is fitted with a ventilation hood. Visually separating the first and second
stories, a brick soldier course of alternating flush and recessed units sandwiched between two
stretcher courses spans the width of the southeast and northeast facades and is accented with
limestone at the buttress corners. This same brick detail extends around to the northwest side of
the tower for a short distance before the facade intersects with the northeast-southwest gable of
the church. Within the first story of the tower’s southeast facade is a tall, pointed-arch doorway.
The arch itself is outlined by three courses of brick headers, and inset and immediately
surrounding the opening is a course of brick headers. Within the arch are stained glass panels
highlighted with modest wooden tracery and the lower part of the transom area is infilled with a
wood panel. Metal-framed, glass doors provide entry to the church. At the east corner of the
tower just above the foundation is the limestone cornerstone that reads “METHODIST
EPISCOPAL CHURCH JULY 25, 1901 on the southeast and northeast facades. Just outside the
doors is a concrete landing and a set of concrete stairs with concrete block foundation and metal

Section 7 page 6



United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service / National Register of Historic Places Registration Form

NPS Form 10-900 OMB No. 1024-0018
Fortville Methodist Episcopal Church Hancock County, IN
Name of Property County and State

railing that leads to the sidewalk level. These stairs replaced the original marble steps.® At the
first story level of the northeast fagade is a pointed-arch, stained glass window with rusticated
limestone sill. It is accented with wooden tracery and its arch is outlined by four rows of header
bricks. Centered within the foundation is a small, one-over-one, double-hung window. The third
bay, the northeast gable end, is inset slightly from the bell tower and is virtually identical to the
southeast gable except that there are three, one-over-one, double-hung windows evenly spaced at
basement level.

The southwest fagade (photos 3 and 4) of the original building is very similar to that of the
northeast fagade with the following exceptions. Visible at the basement level of the gable end,
four evenly spaced openings have been infilled with materials to closely match the existing
foundation. The tower, situated within the east ell, is only two-stories tall and has an entrance,
added in 1986° and protected by a red fabric awning, at basement level. A metal door with glass
window in the upper half provides entry to the church.

In 1962, ground was broken for the 58 feet by 40 feet, two-story addition built off the northwest
facade of the original church structure. In order to do so, six small stained-glass windows had to
be removed.” Constructed of red brick in a running bond pattern, the addition sits on a
foundation of concrete masonry units with only one row being visible above ground. The
addition is largely rectangular in shape except for two small wings off the southeast and
southwest corners that house stairwells. A band of white aluminum, encompassing the gutter
system, runs along the roof line.

The northeast (photos 1 and 2) and southwest (photos 3 and 4) facades, consisting of two bays,
are virtually identical in design. The first bay, containing the stairwell wings, extends northeast
and southwest beyond the facade of the original structure. The southeast fagade of both wings
contains an aluminum and glass curtain wall with a centered set of metal-framed, glass doors.
The doors of the northeast wing (photo 1) are at ground level while those of the southwest wing
(photo 3) are accessed by a set of concrete stairs with metal railing. The northeast and southwest
facades of the wings are composed entirely of brick with no openings, and the northwest facades
contain an aluminum and glass curtain wall with a wide, opaque spandrel panel placed
approximately midway across the facade.

The southeastern half of the addition’s second bays contain two aluminum and glass curtain
walls, with awning windows and a wide, opaque spandrel panel between floors, separated by a
section of brick wall. The remaining half of the bay is brick wall with no openings. The
northwestern fagade (photos 2 and 4) is composed of four, aluminum and glass curtain wall
sections with awning windows and a wide, opaque spandrel panel between floors. Three sets of
vertical, opaque spandrel panels separate the curtain walls.

5 Nicholsen and Shoults, 5.

6 Nicholsen and Shoults, Addendum.

" Nicholsen and Shoults, Appendix B, 2. The removed windows were salvaged and used in building a new
window for a shadow box in a basement floor room of the church.
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Each of the southeast entrances within each tower open into a vestibule containing a narrow,
carpeted, mostly open staircase leading to the U-shaped balcony (photo 5). At the top of each
balcony staircase is a door for access to each tower space. The carpeted balcony encompasses
three rows of wooden pews stained a medium brown shade, and along the front of the balcony is
a wooden railing consisting of alternating sections of open areas and solid wood panels between
two bands of wood.

On the main floor, each vestibule leads to the U-shaped narthex (photo 5), directly below the
balcony. Within the south corner is an elevator shaft added 1986. Visually separating the
narthex from the sanctuary is a low, U-shaped wall composed of closely-spaced, vertical wood
members and darker, narrow wood panels. In the middle of the wall is an opening to the main
aisle of the sanctuary simply detailed with white painted walls and ceiling and red carpeting.
Several rows of wooden pews, with red cushions, flank the center aisle. Additional rows of pews
are set within the transept areas (photo 6), and a flattened pointed-arch ceiling visually separates
the nave from the transepts (photo 5). Stepped up from the general seating area, the altar area
(photo 7) has gray carpeting and is encircled by a wooden communion rail composed of
regularly-spaced, square balusters. At the point of the top step, a flattened, pointed-arch ceiling
defines the apse space with a curved wooden screen along the back and side walls. On either side
of the altar, accessed from behind the screen, are two office spaces.

Southwest of the altar, on the northwest sanctuary wall, is a doorway that opens into the 1962
addition. With a main hallway running southwest to northeast, the first floor of the addition
encompasses a large, centralized open area flanked by a classroom and two offices on the
northeast and two classrooms, a closet, and bathrooms on the southwest (photo 8). Direct outside
access to both floors of the addition is by a set of stairs within each of the addition’s southeast
entrances.

Taking these stairs down to the basement, the 1962 addition features concrete block walls, vinyl
composition tile flooring, and a dropped ceiling. Utilizing most of the area toward the northwest
side, and spanning the entire width from northeast to southwest, is the large, open fellowship hall
known as “Friendship Hall.”® Across from Friendship Hall along the southeast side is a kitchen,
storage areas, and short hallway (photo 9) to the original basement space. The area below the
sanctuary is arranged with a large, central open space flanked by classroom spaces on the
northeast and southwest sides (photos 10 and 11). At the east corner of the open space, a narrow
hallway leads northeast to the stairs to the first-floor vestibule. Just inside the hallway entrance,
on the northwest side, are two small bathrooms. Along the southeast wall of the open space,
below the narthex, are two classrooms, the elevator shaft, and an open area that leads to the
basement entrance on the southwest side.

8 Nicholsen and Shoults, Addendum.
° Nicholsen and Shoults, 7.
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8. Statement of Significance

Applicable National Register Criteria
(Mark "x" in one or more boxes for the criteria qualifying the property for National Register
listing.)

A. Property is associated with events that have made a significant contribution to the
broad patterns of our history.

B. Property is associated with the lives of persons significant in our past.

% C. Property embodies the distinctive characteristics of a type, period, or method of
construction or represents the work of a master, or possesses high artistic values,
or represents a significant and distinguishable entity whose components lack
individual distinction.

D. Property has yielded, or is likely to yield, information important in prehistory or
history.

Criteria Considerations
(Mark “x” in all the boxes that apply.)

X A. Owned by a religious institution or used for religious purposes

B. Removed from its original location

C. A birthplace or grave

D. A cemetery

E. A reconstructed building, object, or structure

F. A commemorative property

G. Less than 50 years old or achieving significance within the past 50 years
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(Enter categories from instructions.)
ARCHITECTURE

Period of Significance
1901-1962

Significant Dates
1901, 1962

Significant Person (last name, first name)
(Complete only if Criterion B is marked above.)
N/A

Cultural Affiliation
N/A

Architect/Builder (last name, first name)
Jeckel, Philip F.
Marsh and Guinn
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Period of Significance (justification)

The period of significance for Fortville Methodist Episcopal Church begins in 1901, at
the time of construction, and ends in 1962, the year the glass curtain wall addition was
completed.

Criteria Considerations (explanation, if necessary)

The church is owned by Fortville First United Methodist Church. Accounting for the guidelines
laid out in National Register Bulletin 15, “How to Apply the National Register Criteria for
Evaluation,” the property is still eligible for listing in the National Register of Historic Places as
it is eligible for Criteria C in the area of significance for Architecture.

Statement of Significance Summary Paragraph (Provide a summary paragraph that includes
level of significance, applicable criteria, justification for the period of significance, and any
applicable criteria considerations.)

Fortville Methodist Episcopal Church is eligible for the National Register of Historic Places
under Criteria C in that it embodies the distinctive characteristics of a type, period, and method
of construction. Designed by Philip F. Jeckel and built in 1901, the church is an outstanding
example of Gothic Revival style. Retaining a good level of original architectural integrity, it
features elements associated with the Gothic Revival style including pointed-arch windows and
doorways, brick construction, window tracery, buttresses, and towers with pinnacles. In 1962,
the congregation added a purely Modern addition characterized by its flat roof and glass curtain
wall exterior.

Narrative Statement of Significance (Provide at least one paragraph for each area of
significance.)

Fortville Methodist Episcopal is locally significant under National Register of Historic Places
Criterion C. Designed by architect Philip F. Jeckel and built in 1901,'° it features Gothic
Revival-style elements and retains a good level of architectural integrity. For the small rural
town of Fortville, the church is quite ornate.

10 “Fortville’s New Church.”
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Religious buildings built in the Gothic style first appeared in Europe and were prevalent between
1190 and 1400. In the late eighteenth and early nineteenth centuries, a revival of interest in
religion in England resulted in church construction and restoration. Gothic was the natural style
choice for Britons during this period, but it wasn’t until the early 1800’s that the first Gothic
Revival churches appeared in America. A major identifying feature of the style is the use of
pointed-arched windows which allows for more window space for light infiltration and for
stained glass applications. Other architectural details include primarily stone or brick
construction, the use of interior ribbed vaults (simulated in plaster), buttresses, tracery, pointed-
arched doorways, pinnacles, and towers with crenellated parapets. In addition to style, churches
can also be distinguished by type such as those with a central tower, twin towers, or a single
asymmetrical tower.!!

In the 1840s, Andrew Jackson Downing popularized Gothic Revival architecture for the design
of rural country houses as the style was compatible with the natural landscape.'? Later that
decade, he asserted that the style was appropriate for rural country churches for the same
reason. > By the mid-to-late nineteenth-century, many small, folk-style churches were built
across the country utilizing simple Gothic elements.'*

Fortville Methodist Episcopal Church is an excellent and ornate example of a rural country
church that exhibits characteristics primarily associated with the Gothic Revival style including
pointed-arch windows and doorways, brick construction, window tracery, buttresses, and towers
with pinnacles. It features two towers symmetrically placed within the front-facing ells of the
cross-gabled structure. According to a survey of historic sites and structures in Hancock County,
the church is the oldest extant church in Vernon Township, and is the only one of Gothic Revival
style. It is rated as “outstanding.” !’

By 1916, Vernon Township had nine churches accommodating Baptist, United Brethren,
Methodist Episcopal, Christian, and Roman Catholic denominations.'® Along with Fortville
Methodist Episcopal Church, only three other churches from that time period are extant. All are
in Fortville. Built in 1901, the Christian Church at 10 West Church Street is of brick construction
in the Romanesque Revival style. It currently functions as the Ten West Center for the Arts. Mt.
Carmel Primitive Baptist Church, at 9654 North Fortville Pike, is a wood-framed, vernacular
structure built in 1903. St. Thomas the Apostle Church, 523 South Merrill Street, is a brick,

1 Jeffery Howe, Houses of Worship: An Identification Guide to the History and Styles of American
Religious Architecture (San Diego, CA: Thunder Bay Press, 2003), 156, 157, 160, 161, 166, 167, 175, 177, 182.

12 Virginia McAlester and Lee McAlester, A Field Guide to American Houses (New York, NY: Alfred A.
Knopf, Inc., 1984), 200.

13 Phoebe B. Stanton, Peter Collins, Henry-Russell Hitchcock, William H. Jordy, Nikolaus Pevsner, eds.,
The Gothic Revival and American Church Architecture: An Episode in Taste 1840-1856 (Baltimore, MD: The Johns
Hopkins Press, 1968), 312, 313.

14 Howe, 186.

15 Historic Landmarks Foundation of Indiana, Hancock County Interim Report: Indiana Historic Sites and
Structures Inventory (Indianapolis, IN: Historic Landmarks Foundation of Indiana, 1983), 12-17.

16 George J. Richman, B.L., History of Hancock County Indiana: Its people, industries and institutions
(Greenfield, IN: Wm. Mitchell Printing Co., 1916), 789-794, 807-810.
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Romanesque Revival structure built in 1916.!7 Fortville Methodist Episcopal Church is clearly a
unique church by comparison.

In its layout, the church exhibits some characteristics of the Akron Plan. Lewis Miller, along
with Walter Blythe and Jacob Snyder, first proposed the idea of an auditorium-like sanctuary that
facilitated Sunday school lessons. The idea was adopted for a church in Akron, Ohio, in 1866-
1870, and became a popular choice for Protestant congregations until the 1920s.'% ' In a period
source, Fortville Methodist Episcopal Church is described as having a main “auditorium,”?°
although Sunday school rooms that would typically adjoin the sanctuary appear to have never
existed.

Architect Philip F. Jeckel was based in Anderson, Indiana, when he drew up the plans for
Fortville Methodist Episcopal Church.?! Born in Germany in 1871, he immigrated to the United
States in 1881.%2 Among the structures reported to have been designed by him were Kirkwood
Hall (as Parker and Jeckel) on the campus of Indiana University,?® Anderson High School,?* a
school in Bedford, Indiana,? the power house of the Union Traction Company in Anderson,
Indiana,?® the Carnegie library?’ and the Improved Order of Red Men building in Elwood,
Indiana,?® and the IOOF Lodge in Greensburg, Indiana.?’

17 Historic Landmarks Foundation of Indiana, 12, 17.

18 Angelique Bamberg, “Architecture Around Us,” Western Pennsylvania History (Summer 2019): 10-11,
https://journals.psu.edu/wph/article/view/62950/61950 (accessed 24 March 2024).

19 Cleveland Historical Society, “The Akron Plan,”
https://clevelandhistorical.org/index.php/files/show/9836 (accessed 24 March 2024).

20 “Fortville’s New Church.”

2! Ibid.

22 "United States Census, 1900," database with images, FamilySearch
(https://www.familysearch.org/ark:/61903/1:1:MIMM-726 : 14 January 2022), Phillip Jeckel, 1900.

23 J. Terry Clapacs, Susan Moke, Dina Kellems, and Carrie Schwier, Indiana University Bloomington:
America’s Legacy Campus, new edition (Bloomington, IN: Indiana University Press, 2021),
https://books.google.com/books?id=yYOmMAQAAIAAJ&pg=PA309&Ilpg=PA309&dq=%22parker+and+jeckel%22+

indiana&source=bl&ots=aHmwOOjK 1 &sig=ACfU3U1QAGXWiKeBeQfhhvgiglFJIMAMtA&hl=en&sa=X&ved

=2ahUKEwjwstms3dH6AhXVIIKEHWQsDsAQ6AF6BAgIEAM#v=onepage&q=%22parker%20and%20jeckel%22
%20indiana&f=false (accessed 8 October 2022), 29.

24 Indiana Department of Public Instruction, State of Indiana Nineteenth Biennial Report of the State
Superintendent of Public Instruction (Indianapolis, IN: William B. Burford, 1898), 226,
https://books.google.com/books?id=RLygAAAAMAAI&pg=PA226&Ipg=PA226&dq=philip+ftjeckeltarchitect&s

ource=bl&ots=yapu8V1UqK &sig=ACfU3U2jrPL.t60wgsGI97BmhLUR0GE7ksw&hl=en&sa=X&ved=2ahUKEwjz

wPT60Kv6AhVShYKEHWiQAdOQOAF6BAgfEAM#v=onepage&q=philip%20f%20jeckel%20architect& f=false
(accessed 8 October 2022).

25 “Notice to Contractors,” Bedford (IN) Weekly Muail, 24 March 1899, 2.

26 Henry C. Meyer, The Engineering Record, Building Record and the Sanitary Engineer, vol. 43 (New
York, NY: 1901), 497,
https://books.google.com/books?id=BdOVvAAAAYAAJ&pg=PA497&Ipg=PA497&dq=%22Phillip+F.+Jeckel %22+
architect&source=bl&ots=vUnqwxAlI88&sig=ACfU3U0eG16-
ctoR2JD1r diHmmC65rXQA&hl=en&sa=X&ved=2ahUKEwivg4q ONHO6AhUEIXOKHOWIAYEQ6AF6BAgKEA
M#v=onepage&q=%22Phillip%20F.%20Jeckel%22%20architect&f=false (accessed 8 October 2022)

27 “Contract for Elwood Library,” Indianapolis News, 23 September 1902, 3.

28 «“Red Men Will Build,” Muncie (Indiana) Star Press, 10 June 1906, 3.

2 “The New 1.0.O.F. Home,” Indianapolis News, 29 March 1899, 2.
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The 1962 Modern style addition contrasts with the original church but also reflects its time.
Church congregations were growing rapidly in the post-war years, and many congregations were
embracing Modernism for their additions and new churches. The addition shows many key
characteristics of public facility design from the period. In particular, the designer’s use of
curtain wall systems and a flat roof probably made the addition one of the most starkly Modern
buildings in town, at least for a time.

Developmental History/Additional historic context information

Fortville, Indiana, is a small town located in Vernon Township in Hancock County slightly
northeast of the central part of the state. It is approximately 13 miles northwest of Greenfield, the
county seat.

Hancock County, first settled in 1818, was cleaved from Madison County and organized in 1828.
It was named for John Hancock, the first signer of the Declaration of Independence. At the time,
the area was mostly flat wilderness, populated by Native Americans. Deer, bears, panthers,
rattlesnakes, wolves, and other assorted wild animals were common. There were few white
inhabitants. In 1836, a portion of the north part of Buckcreek Township in Hancock County
became Vernon Township, though the first land entry in Vernon Township occurred in 1826.
Fortville, originally called “Walpole” in honor of Thomas D. Walpole, was laid out by Cephus
Fort in 1849 and was composed of 41 lots.>® That same year, the first business, a general store,
was established, and a railroad through the town was completed in 1852. In 1865, the town was
incorporated and the named changed to “Fortville.” Its population was 240.3! By 1900, just
before the current Fortville Methodist Episcopal Church was built, Fortville’s population was
1,006.%

The seeds of Methodism started in Oxford, England, in 1729, by brothers Charles and John
Wesley. The movement grew to the point where it split with the Church of England and spread to
the United States.>® In 1784, the Methodist Episcopal Church was formed in Baltimore,
Maryland, by John Wesley, Thomas Coke, and Francis Asbury.3* As the religion grew, divisions
occurred and new churches were founded including the Methodist Protestant Church and the
Methodist Episcopal Church South. In 1939, these churches reunited with the Methodist

30 J.H. Binford, History of Hancock County, Indiana: from its earliest settlement by the "pale face," in
1818, down to 1882, illustrated with views, maps, charts, plats, portraits, sketches and diagrams, 1% ed. (Greenfield,
IN: King & Binford, 1882), 25-27, 33, 311, and 313.

31 Richman, 799.

32 STATS Indiana, “Indiana City/Town Census Counts, 1900 to 2020,”
https://www.stats.indiana.edu/population/PopTotals/historic_counts_cities.asp (accessed 15 September 2022).

33 United Methodist Church, “A (brief) history of the people of the United Methodist Church,”
https://www.resourceumc.org/en/content/a-brief-history-of-the-people-of-the-united-methodist-church (accessed 10
October 2022).

34 United Methodist Church, “Glossary: Christmas Conference,” https://www.umc.org/en/content/glossary-
christmas-conference (accessed 10 October 2022).
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Episcopal Church to form the Methodist Church.?® In 1968, the Methodist Church joined with
the Evangelical United Brethren Church to form the United Methodist Church.3®

The origins of the Fortville Methodist Episcopal Church trace to the early 1840s when a small
group of Methodist settlers began worshiping in various buildings in Hamilton County,
northwest of Fortville. The first dedicated church building, a log structure called Staat’s Chapel,
was built in 1847 about one-and-a-half miles northwest of Fortville. In 1856, a revival meeting
held in Peter Staat’s log barn in Fortville led to the formation of the Fortville Methodist
Episcopal Church. The congregation met in various places until 1859 when a frame church was
built. In the early 1890s, discussions began about the need to build a new church.?’ Eventually,
Architect Philip F. Jeckel of Anderson, Indiana, was selected to draw up the plans, and the
building contract was awarded to Marsh and Guinn, also of Anderson. On March 18, 1901,
ground was broken for the current church structure, and on July 25, 1901, the cornerstone was
laid to great fanfare. The church was formally dedicated on March 23, 1902.3®

In 1902, the church membership was 200, and by 1922, had grown to 505. In 1947, the church
was redecorated and speakers were added to the belfry. In 1954, another redecorating occurred,
new lights were installed, and the building was rewired. With the congregation still growing, the
church broke ground in 1962 for a 58 feet by 40 feet, two-story education, fellowship hall, and
kitchen addition. In 1977, the sanctuary was remodeled and the following year, the tower roofs
were restored to their original appearance. In 1986, an elevator and basement level entrance were
added and new exterior stairways were built.*

Fortville Methodist Episcopal Church became Fortville First United Methodist Church following
the formation of the United Methodist Church in 1968.%° In 2019, Sunrise United Methodist
Church in Indianapolis, Indiana, merged with Fortville First United Methodist Church to form
Gateway Community Church of Fortville. The congregation worships in the 1901 structure built
as the Fortville Methodist Episcopal Church.

35 United Methodist Church, “A (brief) history of the people of The United Methodist Church.”

36 United Methodist Church, “Formation of The United Methodist Church”
(https://www.umc.org/en/content/formation-of-the-united-methodist-church) accessed 10 October 2022.

37 Nicholsen and Shoults, 1-2, 4.

38 “Fortville’s New Church.”

3 Nicholsen and Shoults, 5-7, Addendum.

40 United Methodist Church, “Formation of The United Methodist Church.”
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10. Geographical Data

Acreage of Property less than one acre
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Use the UTM system

UTM References

Datum (indicated on USGS map):

NAD 1927

1. Zone: 16

2. Zone:

3. Zone:

4. Zone:

or

NAD 1983

Easting: 598330
Easting:
Easting:

Easting:

Hancock County, IN

County and State

Northing: 4421140
Northing:
Northing:

Northing:

Verbal Boundary Description (Describe the boundaries of the property.)

SD NW and Staats Addition, Lot 3, Lot 4 and Lot 23, also Lot 30 Block 13 in Staats
Addition, all located in the Town of Fortville, Hancock County, Indiana. The above lots are
recorded as quitclaim deeds, files No. OT22-16069 and OT22-16070.

Boundary Justification (Explain why the boundaries were selected.)

The boundary description encompasses the contributing resource, Fortville Methodist
Episcopal Church, of this nomination. This is the property associated with the resource
during the period of significance.
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11. Form Prepared By

name/title: Jill Downs

organization: on behalf of Gateway Community Church of Fortville

street & number: 1202 Elmwood Avenue

city or town: Fort Wayne state: IN zip code:46805
e-mail: jdowns1908@gmail.com

telephone: (260) 437-1192

date: March 26, 2024

Additional Documentation

Submit the following items with the completed form:

e Maps: A USGS map or equivalent (7.5 or 15 minute series) indicating the property's
location.

e Sketch map for historic districts and properties having large acreage or numerous
resources. Key all photographs to this map.

e Additional items: (Check with the SHPO, TPO, or FPO for any additional items.)
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Name of Property County and State
Photographs

Submit clear and descriptive photographs. The size of each image must be 3000x2000 at 300
ppi (pixels per inch) or larger. Key all photographs to the sketch map. Each photograph must
be numbered and that number must correspond to the photograph number on the photo log.
For simplicity, the name of the photographer, photo date, etc. may be listed once on the
photograph log and doesn’t need to be labeled on every photograph.

Photo Log

Name of Property: Fortville Methodist Episcopal Church

City or Vicinity: Fortville

County: Hancock State: IN

Photographer: Jill Downs

Date Photographed: September 16, 2022

Description of Photograph(s) and number, include description of view indicating direction of
camera:

1 of 11.  Northeast and southeast facades, looking north.
(IN_HancockCounty FortvilleMethodistEpiscopalChurch _0001)

2 of 11.  Northeast and northwest facades, looking south.
(IN_HancockCounty FortvilleMethodistEpiscopalChurch 0002)

3of 11.  Southeast and southwest facades, looking north.
(IN_HancockCounty FortvilleMethodistEpiscopalChurch_0003)

40f11. Northest and southwest facades, south.
(IN_HancockCounty FortvilleMethodistEpiscopalChurch 0004)

5of 11. Balcony, narthex and sanctuary, looking southeast.
(IN_HancockCounty FortvilleMethodistEpiscopalChurch 0005)

6 of 11.  Southwest transept, looking west.
(IN_HancockCounty FortvilleMethodistEpiscopalChurch _0006)

7of11.  Sanctuary and altar, looking northwest.
(IN_HancockCounty FortvilleMethodistEpiscopalChurch 0007)

Sections 9-end page 21



United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service / National Register of Historic Places Registration Form

NPS Form 10-900 OMB No. 1024-0018
Fortville Methodist Episcopal Church Hancock County, IN
Name of Property County and State

8 of 11.  First floor classrooms, looking northwest
(IN_HancockCounty FortvilleMethodistEpiscopalChurch 0008)

9of 11.  Friendship Hall and kitchen, looking east.
(IN_HancockCounty FortvilleMethodistEpiscopalChurch _0009)

10 of 11. Basement classrooms, looking southeast.
(IN_HancockCounty FortvilleMethodistEpiscopalChurch 0010)

11 of 11. Basement classrooms, looking northwest.
(IN_HancockCounty FortvilleMethodistEpiscopalChurch 0011)

Paperwork Reduction Act Statement: This information is being collected for applications to the National Register of Historic
Places to nominate properties for listing or determine eligibility for listing, to list properties, and to amend existing listings. Response
to this request is required to obtain a benefit in accordance with the National Historic Preservation Act, as amended (16 U.S.C.460
et seq.).

Estimated Burden Statement: Public reporting burden for this form is estimated to average 100 hours per response including

time for reviewing instructions, gathering and maintaining data, and completing and reviewing the form. Direct comments regarding
this burden estimate or any aspect of this form to the Office of Planning and Performance Management. U.S. Dept. of the Interior,
1849 C. Street, NW, Washington, DC.
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